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Native American Mound and
Early Settlers’ Celebrations

Pre-history to 1852

This was a sacred site to Iowa’s 
First Peoples, Early white 
settlers recalled an “enormous 
mound” on this site and so used 
this high spot for speeches, 
gatherings and celebrations 
such as the 4th of July for 
many years. 

Sadly, the mound was leveled 
in 1852 when the City graded 
7th Street. The burial mound

Image of Indian Mound State Park, St. Paul, MN
Courtesy of Minneapolis Star-Tribune

revealed Native American 
artifacts, hunting tools and 
human remains that allegedly 
were sent to the Smithsonian. 
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The Birthplace of Iowa, 1834:
The first execution in what 
would become Iowa on 
June 20, 1834 is why the Black 
Hawk Purchase became part of 
The U.S.A. on June 28, 1834
  

One man was murdered by his 
Dubuque lead mining partner, 
Dubuque’s citizens held a trial, 
making national news as the 
Black Hawk Purchase had no 
laws for  it was not part of the 
U.S. or a territory. Convicted by 
his peers, the  murder appealed, 
yet no one had jurisdiction, not 
even President Andrew Jackson.

Patrick O’conner was executed  June 
20, 1834 for the murder of George 
O’keaf on the large mound that 
once stood here. A thousand 
witnessed yet Dubuque had fewer 
than 500 citizens. Three days later, 
the bill went to Congress, passed  
June 28, and it expanded our nation 
to include what is now Eastern Iowa. 
These events were the first steps to 
Iowa’s 1846 statehood,, making this 
site the birthplace of Iowa.

Procession to execution at Tyburn, London, England 
Courtesy of rhymes.org.uk
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Jefferson House Hotel
1856 to 1918

A Swiss-German immigrant, 
Joseph Gehrig built his hotel 
here, in the German heart of 
Dubuque. A welcoming place for 
all, it became a beacon for 
German immigrants coming to 
and through Iowa. Once four 
stories tall, but modified by 
later owners, the 2nd floor 
archway and many of the 
windows are original to the 1856 
hotel.

Lithograph from
The Industries of Dubuque

Published 1887
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Sanitary Milk Company
1920 to 1943

Local farmers brought their milk 
on wagons into downtown for 
sanitary processing to reduce the 
threat of milk-borne diseases. The 
smokestack addition was built in 
1930 to power and vent the daily 
processing of thousands of 
gallons of milk, which were then 
bottled on site and delivered to 
homes and businesses from its 
garage next door. A rare example 
of Iowa’s urban agricultural 
industrial history, this site bridges 
the urban-rural divide.

1938 Advertisement (Bob Reding) & Bottle image 
from EncyclopediaDubuque.org
Smokestack image (C. Grooder); 
Lights (Scott, Leon, Balloons)
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Sanitary Milk Company
1920 to 1943

The Sanitary Milk Company is 
the reason this building still 
stands as it strengthened the 
first two floors and basement 
of the hotel with 12- to 
20-inch concrete slabs. Its 
coolers and freezers used cork 
insulation and ammonia-based 
refrigeration. The 2nd floor 
cooler doors have been in place 
for 100 years and some of the 
exterior ghost signs remain. Image courtesy of 

TokenCatalog.com



History of Smokestack
Almost 200 Years of Adaptive Re-Use

Farley & Loetscher Buildings 
1943 to 1978

These are last buildings, of the 
Farley & Loetscher millwork 
campus. F&L both used and leased 
this building and the dairy’s 
former garage next door to 
several tenants, including Burke 
Alumatic, County Relief Food 
Distribution, McCray’s Chicks 
hatchery, and the basement was 
even a fallout shelter. F&L added 
metal windows, cutting into the 
dairy’s ghost signs that once 
covered much of the building.  

Burke Alumatic Windows & Doors Brochure
Found in a wall on the first floor
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Warehouse to Smokestack 
1978 to Present

Among the last known tenants 
were C&T Motorcycles and Feye 
Brothers Auto Warehouse, yet the 
building became derelict until a 
couple from Brooklyn, NY passing 
through in 2013 heard a calling to 
this one spot in Dubuque. Ready for 
an adventure and wanting to save 
this historic property and its unique 
beauty from the City’s intended 
demolition, they realized this site 
wanted to be shared again, so they 
created Smokestack.


